


CC Special meeting 08.06.24 
Page 1 of 3 

 

4b. 
COUNTY OF CROW WING 

CITY OF JENKINS 
DRAFT**MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING**DRAFT 

AUGUST 5, 2024 
 

CALL TO ORDER: The special meeting of the Council was called to order at 5:00 PM by 
Mayor Rudlang with the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
ROLL CALL: Present:  Mayor Rudlang; Council members Flategraff, Siltman, Barnett 

and Haff; Clerk Okerman; Deputy Clerk Delougherty and Attorney 
Person. 

 
SPECIAL MEETING PARAMETERS:  Okerman stated that this special meeting was called 

and noticed in accordance with MS Statutes 13D.04, Subdivision 2.  She 
said the only thing that could be discussed was what the meeting was 
noticed for, which was Whitetail Hollows and its Developer’s Agreement.  
She said it was a public meeting but the Council only had one hour due to 
a Planning Commission meeting that was scheduled for 6 PM.  She said 
special meetings and workshops generally did not take any public 
comment.  Okerman then turned the meeting over to Mayor Rudlang.  
Rudlang provided a quick overview stating that 20 years ago Whitetail 
Hollows was platted without a Developer’s Agreement.  He said in recent 
years the property owners reinitiated the project.  He noted there had been 
some issues to include the Developer being in default of the contract.  He 
said the road was materially complete.  Rudlang said he met with Leutem, 
who in turn provided him with a list of demands.  The demands were that 
the turf establishment be deemed sufficient, he did not want to work with 
our City Engineer any longer or on any future projects, the letter of credit 
be closed out completely and he did not want to be responsible for the 
overages as he felt they were immaterial and were being used against him.  
Rudlang said at some time in the past, Leutem intended to detach to 
JenkinsTownship and he was concerned with continuing legal conflicts.  
He said he felt the Council’s responsibility was to plan and promote long 
term growth by supporting projects and tax development; to mitigate legal 
and financial risks and balance short-term and long-term expenses.  
Rudlang stated he did not want to get a reputation that the City was 
inhospitable and hard to work with. Flategraff said that it was up to the 
Engineer if the turf establishment was acceptable or not.  He said he may 
consider using another engineer.  Rudlang asked if anyone had driven the 
new road.  Haff stated she did and observed some bare spots.  Flategraff 
said there should be good turf establishment with all the rain received in 
the spring.  He said if it wasn’t established, the City would have to do so at 
the City’s cost.  Haff stated she did not think the costs should be borne by 
anyone but the Developer.  She noted that this was especially important in 
this case as the rules were not followed.  She felt the Council had to look 



CC Special meeting 08.06.24 
Page 2 of 3 

 

out for the City and taxpayers and if Leutem’s list of demands were agreed 
to, demands from others going forward would as well.  Rudlang suggested 
that the City put in 1% for each development to show support of the 
project.  He stated Leutem had threatened to detach to Jenkins Township 
in the past.  Haff said the rules were specifically laid out in the 
Developer’s Agreement.  She said there was a cost overage but that was 
due to Leutem not following the rules.  Rudlang said if Leutem’s venture 
failed, the city failed.  Peron said that mediators make both sides feel like 
they were losing.  He said that was done with intent so both sides work on 
a settlement.  Haff said she could understand meeting in the middle to 
make it work.  She did not feel the turf establishment was a make it or 
break it deal.  However she stated the warranty period and securities was.  
Rudlang said Leutem was concerned with the City using the rest of the 
Letter of Credit.  Okerman stated that there were some invoices from 
WSN that were included in the outstanding fees that had been incurred 
prior to the Developer’s Agreement being signed.  She said they were 
primarily for the road standard recommendation, which benefitted the City 
as a whole.  Person said that City could use another engineer on Phase II.  
He stated that could be a compromise if Leutem complied then a condition 
on Phase II could be included for the inspection portion of the project be a 
different engineer.  Flategraff said it was Leutem who came to the City 
Council 20 years ago to annex into the City and develop the property in 
Jenkins.  Flategraff added Leutem said that he leveraged property in the 
Twin Cities and noted it felt like Leutem wanted the City to do what they 
could to make him money.  Rudlang expressed concerns what would 
happen in the future if the City ended up with an unworkable situation.  
Siltman said it was a detriment to the City if the Council gave Leutem 
everything he wanted.  He stated the City had already changed its 
developer’s agreement for him.  He said the City allowed one house 
permit and Leutem was always pushing the City to change things for him 
and felt the City was being strong-armed.  Haff asked Rudlang what he 
wanted the City to do.  She said the Attorney had presented some options.  
She asked if Rudlang wanted the City to give in to his demands.  Rudlang 
said the Council was the decision maker.  Flategraff said that the City 
hired outside people for their expertise.  He said he was willing to work 
with Leutem but did not feel that was being reciprocated.  Siltman said the 
City had an Engineer for a reason.  He stated the $20K in warranty 
securities as being very generous on the City’s part.  He said he would like 
to see more turf establishment, didn’t expect a golf course but did not want 
to see patches of bare dirt.  Siltman said he was not opposed to working 
with Leutem but all parties signed the Developer’s Agreement and those 
conditions should remain.  He said the City has not pointed fingers, but 
felt it was Leutem’s errors and disregard for the Developer’s Agreement 
that brought the Council to this point.  Barnett agreed with Siltman.  He 
said he would consider forgiving some of the invoices incurred for 
establishment of road standards.  He agreed more turf should be 



CC Special meeting 08.06.24 
Page 3 of 3 

 

established but was not sure if it should be a sticking point.  He said he felt 
the City should remain with Widseth and should require the $20K letter of 
credit.  Attorney Person said the City could require a warranty bond but 
that involved an insurance company.  He said a letter of credit did not cost 
Leutem anything additional.  He said worst case scenario the City could 
sue Leutem.  He noted a warranty bond only covered what was completed 
on the project to date and wouldn’t be applicable if the project stopped 
where it was.  Rudlang said he would like the turf establishment issues to 
be removed.  He said he did not like the idea of using another engineer and 
noted closing out the letter of credit was another compromise.  He posed 
the question if the Council felt the City was a partner in developments.  He 
felt that the City was a partner as it helped the City grow.  He said the City 
would not be pleased with a triple overage in engineering fees.  He said he 
did not want the City to get a reputation of not being flexible.  Siltman 
said that there was a signed Agreement that Leutem himself edited and 
proceeded to sign.  He did not feel the City was setting any precedent for 
any future development but more for Phase II with Leutem.  Haff agreed.  
She asked what Leutem thought the warranty amount would be.  Flategraff 
said Leutem blamed things on the Engineer but Leutem also sat in the 
Council chambers and he was told to contact Widseth on more than one 
occasion.  Leutem did not do that and proceeded with constructing the 
road without City knowledge.  Haff said she felt the City was willing to 
work with him but Leutem was not willing to work with the City.  
Rudlang said he did not necessarily disagree but expressed some concerns 
with how Leutem would proceed.  After further discussion, it was 
Council consensus to have two Councilmembers meet with Leutem.  
Okerman recommended that it be held at City Hall so staff could be there 
as well or at a minimum, have it via Zoom so it was recorded.   

 
ADJOURNMENT: A motion to adjourn the special City Council meeting at 6:00 PM was 

made by Flategraff and seconded by Siltman; all present voted aye. 
 
Approved this ____________________ day of __________________, 2024. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________  ______________________________ 
Krista A. Okerman, City Clerk-Treasurer   Andrew J. Rudlang, Mayor 
 
 
    
        



CC 08.12.24 
Page 1 of 6 

 

4b. 
COUNTY OF CROW WING                                         

CITY OF JENKINS 
DRAFT**MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING**DRAFT 

AUGUST 12, 2024 
 
CALL TO ORDER: The regular City Council meeting was called to order at 6:00 PM 

by Mayor Rudlang with all reciting the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
ROLL CALL: Present:  Mayor Rudlang; Council Members Flategraff, Siltman, 

Barnett and Haff; Clerk Okerman.  Audience members via Zoom:  
Nancy Stockman and Mark Leutem. 

 
AGENDA ADDITIONS: Flategraff requested to add discussion on hosting a community 

social under communications/misc. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: Rudlang requested a clarification on the minutes related to his 

comments about deviating from the Developer’s Agreement. The 
Consent Agenda was approved as follows on motion by 
Flategraff and second by Siltman.  All present voted aye. 

 4a.  Agenda 
 4b.  Minutes of the July 23rd regular City Council meeting with 

changes. 
 4c.  Financial Report through July 31, 2024 
 4d.  Pre-written check #’s 24479-24484 & EFT; $10,670.25 
 4e.  Proposed check #’s 24485-24496 & EFT; $5,602.46 
 TOTAL EXPESENES = $16,272.71 
 
OPEN FORUM: None. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS: Earle Jenkins Estates:  Okerman reported that she drafted a 

Developer’s Agreement for Earle Jenkins Estates.  She noted staff, 
Engineer Reese and Attorney Person had reviewed the Agreement 
and comments from all were included.  Nancy Stockman, Earle 
Jenkins Estates, was present via Zoom and stated she did not have 
time to read through the Draft Developer’s Agreement.  Flategraff 
stated he felt the City should require the utilities be installed prior 
to the road being paved.  Haff said she liked the additions to the 
draft and felt it would help keep things upfront and clear.  
Flategraff made motion to table the Developer’s Agreement.  
Rudlang said the Council could approve the Agreement contingent 
upon Stockman’s agreeing to it so as not to hold up the project if 
they were amendable to the conditions.  Flategraff rescinded his 
motion.   

 Flategraff said he had a concern with allowing a pre-bituminous 
road when a paved road was required in Whitetail Hollows.  



CC 08.12.24 
Page 2 of 6 

 

Rudlang stated a gravel road seemed characteristic of the 
neighborhood.  Flategraff said he felt the Council needed to be 
consistent and needed a more uniform plan.  Rudlang said he felt 
every development was unique.  Barnett said he felt it was 
dependent on the development.  He noted if there were $500K and 
over homes, it was likely they would want bituminous in that 
development.  Rudlang said he did not want a bituminous 
requirement to be a stagnating point due to costs.  Okerman said 
there were only two development remaining that had been 
recorded prior to improvements being constructed.  She noted 
going forward any new development would not have these issues.    

 Haff made motion to approve the Developer’s Agreement 
between the City of Jenkins and the Stockman’s contingent 
upon Stockman’s approval.  Siltman seconded the motion.  All 
present voted aye.    

 Whitetail Hollows:  Okerman reported she drafted a new resolution 
accepting Blaze Boulevard incorporating Mark Leutem, Developer 
of Whitetail Hollows, requests as well as some outstanding items.  
She noted each item was separated out so they could be discussed 
one item at a time. She said the first item that was not included in 
the Resolution was in regards to engineering services. 

 Engineering services:  Flategraff said he felt Widseth was the 
City’s engineer and the City should remain with Widseth. Leutem 
said he did not think Widseth was objective and said he would like 
an independent engineering firm to finish up the warranty period.  
He said he asked for a list of things that needed to be done at a 
Council meeting where Reese was present and a stormwater 
pollution protection plan (SWPPP) was not mentioned.  He 
mentioned other items he was displeased with.  He said he had 
questions on some Widseth invoices and would like detail on the 
invoices.  Leutem said he was never told there was an overage 
from the escrow he provided.  He noted he did not trust that he 
would get any of his warranty money back.   Flategraff said he had 
concerns with the SWPPP not being submitted.  He said that was a 
State requirement for disturbance of land over 1-acre and felt 
Leutem’s engineer and/or contractor should have known that and 
taken care of that.  He stated Leutem started construction without 
notifying the City, which contributed to a lot of the issues.  The 
Council discussed using a different engineer for the rest of the 
Whitetail Hollows project.  Barnett, Flategraff and Siltman 
expressed they wanted to use Widseth.  Haff and Rudlang felt a 
different engineer could be considered.  Siltman reiterated Widseth 
was the City engineer. He noted the City used them on City 
projects and felt if there was a change it should be at the 
Engineer’s request.   



CC 08.12.24 
Page 3 of 6 

 

 A motion to table using a different engineering firm for the 
remainder of Whitetail Hollows project for more feedback was 
made by Barnett.  Siltman seconded the motion.   Barnett, 
Siltman and Haff vote aye.  Flategraff and Rudlang voted nay.  
Motion carried.   

 
 Turf Establishment:  Flategraff stated there had been precedence 

set in regards to turf establishment in the Pleasant Acres 
Development.  He noted that the warranty was not released until it 
was established to the engineer’s recommendation.  Rudlang 
reminded the Council that the resolution presented was to accept 
Blaze Boulevard.  Leutem stated the Developer’s Agreement stated 
he had to have materials, but nowhere did it say he had to have 
extra sod.  Leutem said Mayor Rudlang agreed Blaze Boulevard 
was the best road in Jenkins.  He stated there would not be any 
runoff from the field and that it would come from the road.  He 
said if there was a drought next spring he shouldn’t have to re-seed 
the whole project next year.  Rudlang felt this was an unnecessary 
pain point to get hung up on.  Flategraff stated that the requirement 
was not that the project be sodded.  Rudlang said it had been a 
particularly rainy year with a lot of heavy rainfalls.  He noted he 
did a site visit after some of the heavy rainfalls and did not see any 
areas of concern and there were no areas of erosion.  Barnett 
agreed there wasn’t anything spelled out in the Developer’s 
Agreement related to the level of turf establishment.  He felt it was 
acceptable since the turf met the State requirements.   However he 
said the City should come up with a number going forward.  
Siltman stated that turf establishment was listed in the Agreement.  
He said there were bare areas and he wanted to see those corrected.  
Haff agreed and said she saw bare spots as well.  Rudlang said he 
felt Leutem’s position was on the level of establishment of the turf.  
Leutem asked where in the agreement that was listed.  Flategraff 
said he felt it should be more established.  Rudlang asked if the 
Council could agree for the level of establishment to be clarified in 
the future. 

 Motion to deem the turf acceptable was made by Flategraff.  
Barnett seconded the motion; all present voted aye. 

 
 Ditch Checks:  Leutem stated that a neighboring property owner 

asked for the ditch check in question to be placed where it was.  He 
said his excavator did not see why the two other ditch checks 
needed to be installed.  The Council questioned which ditch checks 
were the issue.  Okerman said there was an approved plan that 
showed the ditch checks and the placement of them.  Flategraff 
said he felt they needed to be built as approved.  Barnett agreed 
and said they were put on the plan for a reason. 



CC 08.12.24 
Page 4 of 6 

 

 Flategraff made motion to install ditch checks as approved and 
submitted; Siltman seconded.  All present voted aye. 

  
 Permanent drainage easements:  The Council discussed the 

requirement of conveying permanent drainage and utility 
easements to the City.  Leutem said that was being completed.  It 
was consensus to leave that as a condition in the presented 
Resolution.  No action was needed.   

 
 Warranty Securities:  Rudlang stated that the City was requiring 

securities of $20K for turf for first year with another $10K for 
second year.  He said he did not think that was necessary.  He 
stated he felt Leutem would stand behind the road if there were any 
issues with the road.  He felt the City could release the whole letter 
of credit and not require the securities.  Rudlang noted it was a 
concern of Leutem’s.  Leutem said the issue was a $207K Letter of 
Credit was in place and he had $227K in bills.  His concern was 
who would not get paid and noted he and his wife had money that 
was coming out of their pocket. Flategraff said he had hard time 
releasing the extra $20K in securities.  He stated the city could 
have required a performance bond, which would have cost Leutem 
more money.  Siltman agreed and said the City needed to keep the 
$20K Letter of Credit adding that was the City’s security.  Siltman 
said the project was over budget and felt Leutem was trying decide 
where to come up with the money.  Haff agreed the City should 
require holding the securities, but was not sure about the amount.  
Leutem asked why it was that arbitrary amount.  Flategraff 
expressed the City needed to have warranty and assurances.  He 
said Leutem had been fighting the City every step of the way and 
said he felt Leutem tried to make the City feel like they were 
taking advantage of him.  He said it appeared Leutem always 
wanted more but was not willing to give anything.  Rudlang said 
everything appeared to be satisfactory with the road and felt 
releasing the whole letter of credit would be a small concession the 
City could make.  Okerman stated the amount for the securities 
was not an arbitrary number.  She said it was project based on an 
inspection.  She said the inspection was done and items such as the 
status and completeness of the project was considered.   

 Haff made motion to have $20K remain in place for the first 
year warranty.  Siltman seconded the motion.  Haff, Siltman, 
Flategraff and Barnett voted aye.  Rudlang voted nay.  Motion 
carried. 

 Rudlang asked what the Council felt about the warranty for the 
second year.  Flategraff said he would be willing to drop the 
second year to zero dollars. 



CC 08.12.24 
Page 5 of 6 

 

 A motion was made by Flategraff to drop the second year of 
warranty.  Barnett seconded the motion.  Siltman said he felt the 
City should keep the $10K in place.   

 Flategraff, Barnett, Haff and Rudlang voted aye.  Siltman 
voted nay.  Motion carried. 

 
 Outstanding fees:  Okerman reported that she had removed 2 

invoices from the outstanding fees that were incurred as they were 
prior to the Developer’s Agreement being executed.  She said that 
was based on discussion from the special council meeting.  Leutem 
stated he had concerns with the engineering cost overages.  He said 
he was shocked he had to explain himself.  Siltman asked if he was 
just recently made aware of the overages.  Leutem said he was.  
Okerman said he was not over his escrowed amount until recent 
bills.  She said Widseth could provide a detailed breakdown.  
Leutem said he did not think the billing was truthful.  Okerman 
noted that the original Engineers estimate was higher.  However, 
Leutem would not agree to that amount.  She said concessions 
were made on the fore front by the City.  Haff stated the 
outstanding fees needed to be paid.  Barnett agreed.  Rudlang 
asked if anyone as amendable to splitting the fees.  

 A motion to split the remaining overage costs of $4,727.00 was 
made by Rudlang.  Rudlang added he felt the taxpayers would get 
more back due to the development.  Motion died for lack of 
second. 

 Flategraff moved to split the original amount of $6,241.75.  
Rudlang seconded.  Siltman said he disagreed and noted every 
time the City did a road project, 10% was set aside.  He said the 
City should not waiver and not let Developers tell the City what to 
do.  Haff said she wholeheartedly agreed.  She said it was not her 
responsibility to pay for a development that she had nothing to do 
with.  She said the Council talked about Jenkins being a retirement 
and beginning family community and did not think it was fair to 
ask taxpayers to pay someone else’s bill.  Rudlang said he felt 
helping any developments was helping the long term goals of the 
city by increasing the tax base so the levy could go down.  
Flategraff said he felt it would be subsidizing a private business. 

 Rudlang and Flategraff voted aye.  Haff, Barnett and Siltman 
vote nay.  Motion failed. 

 Siltman made motion to leave the outstanding fee amount at 
$4,727.  Barnett seconded the motion; all present voted aye. 

        
NEW BUSINESS: None.   
 
REPORTS: Mayor:  Mayor Rudlang reported he would be attending the 

Mayor’s prayer breakfast. 



CC 08.12.24 
Page 6 of 6 

 

 Planning and Zoning:  Okerman reported on recently issued 
permits and items the Planning Commission was working on. She 
discussed establishing a multi-use district.  The Council was in 
agreement to research that with the exception of Siltman who 
abstained on weighing in.  He noted this was due to attendance 
issues at the Planning Commission meetings and strong opinions 
of some members. He said the City needed to make decisions and 
keep moving forward.  Haff suggested the Council make some 
recommendations back to the Planning Commission. Rudlang said 
he had been considering having an outside person come to the City 
to do some training about roles and responsibilities.  Okerman said 
she would look into it and noted that all the Council and 
Commission would have to be committed to it and it would likely 
be a weekend.   

 
MISC./COMMUNICATIONS:  Flategraff said he would like to see a community event and the 

annual tree lighting event be brought back.  He said it would take 
participation of all the Councilmembers.  He reported he attended 
the Heartland Cable Commission meeting and was on the 
committee for choosing scholarship recipients. 

   
ADJOURNMENT:  A motion to adjourn the regular City Council meeting at 8:45 

PM was made by Barnett and seconded by Flategraff; all 
present voted aye. 

 
Approved this ______________________ day of ______________________, 2024. 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ ______________________________ 
Krista A. Okerman, City Clerk-Treasurer   Andrew J. Rudlang, Mayor 



















































 
AGENDA ITEM # _______________ 

REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL 
Prepared by: Krista Okerman  
Date:  August 24, 2024 
Subject: Park and Rec Committee recommendations 
 
Report:   Attached please find information regarding a Born Learning Trail that the Parks and 
Rec Committee reviewed and considered per the following email correspondence from Tracy 
Wallin of the United Way: 

“Hello Krista! 

I wanted to reach out and see if Jenkins would be interested in having a Born Learning trail 
installed around the playground? The Born Learning Trail is a series of signs that encourages 
child and adult interaction while also supporting learning. I think it would be a great addition 
alongside the playground. We have one set of English signs purchased and ready to go, we are 
just looking for a home for them : ) There is a spanish version of the signs if you wanted to offer 
a bilingual experience.  

Last August we installed a set of signage in Kiwanis Park in Brainerd if you want to visit that to 
see exactly what we are proposing. The attached video shows the finished project at Kiwanis 
Park. The local Kiwanis club and their highschool Key Club members assisted with painting that 
day. This could be a great opportunity for a local service organization to get involved. The 
United Way would maintain the painted portion of the trail going forward with annual touch-ups. 
Although this may be a great future project for a couple students during the Pequot Lakes High 
School Day of Caring.  

To learn more about the Born Learning trail visit our website: 
https://www.unitedwaynow.org/born-learning-trails   

I would be happy to come in to visit if you want to know more about it.  

Looking forward to working with you! 

Tracy” 

Budget Impact: $0.00  

Council Action Requested:  The Parks and Rec Committee has reviewed this opportunity and 
recommend approval of the installation of the Born Learning Trail around the playground at 
Veterans Park.   

 

https://www.unitedwaynow.org/born-learning-trails


 

The City received a donation of a bench from the Lions Club.  The Lions club would like to 
know the location of where that bench would be located.  They are respectfully requesting that 
the bench be placed near the flag display. 

The basketball court at Veterans Park was recently resurfaced.  It did not included any striping.  
The Parks Committee received quotes on striping court at Veteran Park with one of the quotes 
being a verbal quote.  The Committee is recommending accepting the quote from Pavestripe in 
the amount of $250.00 for painting the basketball lines contingent upon receiving a paper quote. 

Budget Impact: $250.00  

Council Action Requested:  Motion to approve the quote from Pavestripe in the amount of 
$250.00 contingent upon receiving a paper quote. 

 

 

 

 




